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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMC Technologies. Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income (Unaudited)

(In millions, except per share data)

Revenue

Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales
Selling, general and administrative expense
Research and development expense

Total costs and expenses
Minority interests

(Loss) income before net interest expense and income taxes
Net interest expense

(Loss) income before income taxes
(Benefit) provision for income taxes

Net income

Earnings per share (Note 2)
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average shares outstanding (Note 2)
Basic

Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Three Months Ended

March 31,

2005 2004
$ 681.6 $ 562.7
580.3 450.2
88.6 79.4
13.3 12.4
682.2 542.0
(0.8) 0.2
(1.4) 20.9
(1.2) 2.09)
(2.6) 18.9
(2.6) 5.5
$ 00 $ 134
$ 0.00 $ 020
$ 0.00 $ 0.20
69.1 66.8
69.1 68.4



FMC Technologies. Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In millions, except per share data)

Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables, net of allowances 0of $11.2 in 2005 and $10.9 in 2004
Inventories (Note 3)
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Total current assets
Investments
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $443.6 in 2005 and $441.1 in 2004
Goodwill (Note 4)
Intangible assets, net (Note 4)
Deferred income taxes
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity:
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable, trade and other
Advance payments
Other current liabilities
Income taxes payable
Current portion of accrued pension and other postretirement benefits (Note 9)
Deferred income taxes

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion
Accrued pension and other postretirement benefits, less current portion
Reserve for discontinued operations
Other liabilities
Minority interests in consolidated companies
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 12)
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 12.0 shares authorized; no shares issued in 2005 or 2004

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 195.0 shares authorized; 69.3 and 68.8 shares issued in 2005 and 2004, respectively;

69.0 and 68.7 shares outstanding in 2005 and 2004, respectively
Common stock held in employee benefit trust, at cost, 0.1 shares outstanding in 2005 and 2004
Common stock held in treasury, at cost; 0.2 shares in 2005, no shares in 2004 (Note 11)
Capital in excess of par value of common stock
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (Note 11)

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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March 31, December 31,
2005 2004

(Unaudited)

§ 724 $ 1241
634.0 671.7
392.2 316.3

214 15.0
75.5 90.0
1,195.5 1,217.1
76.2 76.6
322.6 332.8
114.8 116.8
69.1 72.0
653 47.0
322 31.6

$ 18757 $ 1,893.9

$ 2.1 $ 2.7
335.7 368.8
342.1 297.5
2133 2374

57.5 57.0
27.7 28.7
7.1 33
985.5 9954
164.3 160.4
19.5 20.6
6.3 6.9
40.9 42.5
6.5 59
0.7 0.7
2.6) 2.4)
(5.7) —
653.9 637.8
87.1 87.1
(80.7) (61.0)
652.7 662.2
$ 1,875.7 $ 1,893.9




FMC Technologies. Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

(In millions)

Cash provided (required) by operating activities of continuing operations:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided (required) by operating activities of continuing operations:

Depreciation

Amortization

Employee benefit plan costs
Deferred income tax benefit
(Gain) loss on sale of assets
Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:

Trade receivables, net

Inventories

Other current assets and other assets

Accounts payable, trade and other

Advance payments

Other current liabilities and other liabilities

Income taxes payable

Accrued pension and other postretirement benefits, net

Cash required by operating activities of continuing operations

(Continued)

Three Months Ended

March 31,

2005 2004
$§ 00 § 134
13.0 14.2
3.0 23
9.7 9.0
9.7) 2.4)
2.7) 0.4
3.1 1.0
242 (28.4)
(85.9) (22.3)
32 5.5
(26.8) (15.8)
512 27.5
(25.5) (11.6)
13 0.7)
(1.5) (1.8)
$ (494) $ (9




FMC Technologies. Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited) (Continued)

(In millions)

Cash required by operating activities of continuing operations
Cash required by discontinued operations

Cash provided (required) by investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Business acquisition, net of cash acquired, and joint venture investments
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and other long-lived assets
Increase in investments

Cash required by investing activities

Cash provided (required) by financing activities:
Net (decrease) increase in short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt
Net increase in commercial paper
Repayments of long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options
Increase in common stock held in treasury
Net (increase) decrease in common stock held in employee benefit trust

Cash provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Three Months Ended

March 31,

2005 2004
$ 494 $ 7
0.1) 2.0)
(11.3) (10.3)
— @.1)
4.7 0.3
0.2)
6.6) (12.3)
0.3) 242
39 —
0.4) —
94 9.1
(5.7 —
0.2) 0.8
6.7 34.1
23) (0.8)
(51.7) 9.3
124.1 29.0
$ 724 $ 383




FMC Technologies. Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements, and notes thereto (the “statements”), of FMC Technologies, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“FMC
Technologies” or the “Company”) have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. As permitted under
those rules, certain footnotes or other financial information that are normally required by United States generally accepted accounting principles can be
condensed or omitted. Therefore, these statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements, and notes thereto, which
are included in the Company’s 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In the opinion of management, the statements reflect all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair presentation of the
Company’s financial condition and operating results as of and for the periods presented. Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities can vary during each
quarter of the year. Therefore, the results and trends in these statements may not be representative of those for the full year. Certain reclassifications have been
made to prior period amounts to conform to the current period’s presentation.

Note 2: Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)
The following schedule is a reconciliation of the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2005 2004

(In millions, except per share data)
Basic earnings per share:
Net income $§ 00 $ 134
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 69.1 66.8
Basic earnings per share $ 000 § 020
Diluted earnings per share:
Net income $§ 00 $ 134
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 69.1 66.8
Effect of dilutive securities:

Options on common stock — 13

Restricted stock — 0.3
Total shares and diluted securities 69.1 68.4
Diluted earnings per share $ 000 § 020

For the three months ended March 31,2005, 1.7 million shares of stock were excluded from the computation of diluted shares outstanding as the Company
had no earnings from continuing operations and therefore the shares would have had an anti-dilutive effect. For the three months ended March 31,2004,
options to purchase 0.5 million shares of stock were excluded from the computation of diluted shares outstanding as the option exercise prices exceeded the
average market price of the shares during the period.

There were no dividends declared during the three-months ended March 31,2005 or 2004.
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Note 3: Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2005 2004
(In millions)
Raw materials $ 1144 $ 87.3
Work in process 137.7 96.5
Finished goods 282.4 268.0
Gross inventories before LIFO reserves and valuation adjustments 534.5 451.8
LIFO reserves and valuation adjustments (142.3) (135.5)
Net inventories $ 3922 $§ 3163
Note 4: Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill
The carrying amount of goodwill by business segment was as follows:
March 31, December 31,
2005 2004
(In millions)
Energy Production Systems $ 799 $ 81.5
Energy Processing Systems 10.7 10.7
Subtotal Energy Systems 90.6 922
FoodTech 153 15.6
Airport Systems 8.9 9.0
Total goodwill $ 1148 $ 1168

The change in the carrying amount of goodwill results from the impact of foreign currency translation adjustments.

Intangible assets

All ofthe Company’s acquired intangible assets are subject to amortization and, where applicable, foreign currency translation adjustments. Amortization
expense related to intangible assets in the three-months ended March 31,2005 and 2004, was $1.3 million and $1.1 million, respectively. The Company
estimates that amortization of intangible assets will be approximately $3.8 million for the remainder of 2005. Based on current information, annual
amortization expense for acquired intangible assets is expected to be approximately $5.0 million during the years 2006 through 2010.

The components of intangible assets were as follows:

March 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Gross Gross

carrying Accumulated carrying Accumulated

amount amortization amount amortization
(In millions)
Customer lists $ 309 $ 7.9 $ 31.1 $ 6.4
Patents and acquired technology 50.6 18.6 52.4 21.1
Trademarks 19.9 6.6 204 5.2
Other 1.9 1.1 1.9 1.1
Total intangible assets $103.3 $ 342 $105.8 $ 33.8




Note 5: Derivative Financial Instruments

The consolidated balance sheets include the following amounts representing the fair value of derivative instruments:

March 31, December 31,
2005 2004

(In millions) - -
Other current assets $ 14.1 $ 37.6
Other assets 8.9 8.0
Other current liabilities 17.4 27.9
Other liabilities 2.1 32
Total net fair value of derivative instruments $ 35 $ 14.5

At March 31,2005, the net fair value of derivative instruments held on the balance sheet was $3.5 million. Cash flow hedges accounted for $11.0 million in
net assets, while fair value hedges accounted for $7.5 million in net liabilities. The mark-to-market changes in cash flow hedges are deferred until the
underlying hedged transactions are executed and are included in other comprehensive income (loss) on the consolidated balance sheet. The deferred gains,
net of income taxes, totaled $6.9 million and $7.7 million at March 31,2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively. Mark-to-market changes of fair value
hedges are recorded in cost of sales on the consolidated statements of income and offset the mark-to-market changes of the underlying exposures.

There was no material hedge ineffectiveness related to outstanding cash flow hedges recorded in earnings during the three-months ended March 31,2005 or
2004.

Note 6: Allowance for Contract Loss

The Company has a contract to supply an offshore oil loading system to Sonatrach-TRC, the Algerian Oil and Gas Company (“Sonatrach”). During the first
quarter of 2005, the Company recorded a provision for anticipated losses on the Sonatrach contract of $27.0 million, which was classified in cost of sales on
the Company’s consolidated statements of income. The Company increased its estimate of the total costs to complete the Sonatrach project due primarily to
costs related to extended testing and installation of the offshore pipelines, caused in part by bad weather conditions and sealing issues discovered during the
final testing of pipeline connections. Additional costs were also incurred due to engineering design changes at three onshore pump stations. Project
engineering and project management costs have increased as a result of the additional onshore and offshore requirements. In the third and fourth quarters of
2004, the Company recorded provisions for anticipated losses for the Sonatrach project of $4.4 million and $17.0 million, respectively, as a result of delays
primarily caused by severe weather conditions at the Algerian project site.

At March 31,2005 and December 31,2004, current liabilities on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets included $15.9 million and $5.8 million,
respectively, representing an allowance for these anticipated losses in connection with the Sonatrach contract. The allowance reflects the Company’s
assessment of the magnitude of potential losses on this project based on currently available information. Unanticipated changes in conditions or changes in
our underlying assumptions based on new information could cause the Company to change its assessment of potential losses on the project and to incur costs
in excess of those accrued at March 31, 2005. The Company uses the percentage of completion method of accounting to recognize revenue from this project,
which is included in the Energy Production Systems business segment.

Note 7: Warranty Obligations

The Company provides warranties of various lengths and terms to certain of our customers based on standard offerings and negotiated agreements. Warranty
cost and accrual information is as follows:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2005 2004

(In millions)

Balance at beginning of period $ 127 $ 105
Expense for new warranties 33 2.8
Adjustments to existing accruals 0.1 0.1)
Claims paid 3.4) 2.9)
Balance at end of period $ 127 $ 103



Note 8: Income Taxes

Income tax benefit for the three months ended March 31, 2005, was $2.6 million on loss before income taxes of $2.6 million. The difference between the
effective tax rate and the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate related primarily to differing foreign and state tax rates.

On October 22,2004, the American Jobs Creation Act (the “Act”) was signed into law. The Act creates an incentive for U.S. corporations to repatriate
earnings of foreign subsidiaries in 2005 by providing an 85% dividends received deduction for qualifying dividends. The deduction is subject to a number
of limitations and as of March 31, 2005, the Company had not determined whether, and to what extent, it would repatriate earnings under the provisions of
the Act. Accordingly, income tax expense for the three months ended March 31,2005, does not reflect any provision related to the repatriation of earnings
under the provisions of the Act. However, based on the Company’s analysis to date, a reasonable range of possible qualifying dividends that the Company
might repatriate is between $0 and $500 million, with a potential range of income tax liability between $0 and $52 million. The Company’s analysis of this
Act and of its implications for the Company is not complete, and the amount of earnings repatriated by the Company, if any, and the income tax impact
thereof, may vary considerably from these estimates.

Note 9: Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits
The components of net periodic benefit cost were as follows:

Pension Benefits

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2005 2004

(In millions)

Service cost $ 6.5 $ 5.7
Interest cost 9.3 8.7
Expected return on plan assets (11.5) (10.2)
Amortization of transition asset 0.1) 0.1)
Amortization of prior service cost 0.2 0.3
Amortization of actuarial losses, net 1.6 1.6
Net periodic benefit cost $ 6.0 $ 6.0

Other Postretirement Benefits

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2005 2004
(In millions) _ -
Service cost $ 0.2 $ 0.2
Interest cost 0.6 0.6
Amortization of prior service benefit 0.4) 0.4)
Net periodic benefit cost $ 0.4 $ 0.4

For the three-months ended March 31, 2005, contributions to the Company’s pension plans amounted to $6.2 million. Substantially all of these contributions
were made to the U.K. and Norway qualified pension plans. During the remainder of 2005, the Company anticipates contributing approximately $23.0
million to its pension plans, including $15.0 million to its domestic qualified pension plan, which does not have a minimum funding requirement for 2005.

At March 31,2005, the current portion of accrued pension and other postretirement benefits of $27.7 million included approximately $24.9 million that the
Company estimates it will contribute to pension plans during the next twelve months.

Note 10: Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1,2004, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” using
the retroactive restatement method described in SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure.” Under the fair
value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the value of the award and is recognized
as expense over the vesting period. Total stock-based employee compensation expense, including stock option and other stock-based compensation expense,
was $3.5 million and $2.7 million for the three months ended March 31,2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Note 11: Stockholders’ Equity

The Company has been authorized by its Board of Directors to repurchase up to two million shares of'its issued and outstanding common stock. In February
2005, the Company announced plans to begin repurchasing shares. Of the two million shares authorized, the Company repurchased 170,700 shares for $5.7
million in the first quarter of 2005. The Company intends to hold repurchased shares in treasury for general corporate purposes, including issuances under its
employee stock plans. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method.

Comprehensive income (loss) consisted of the following:

Three Months Ended

March 31,

2005 2004
(In millions)
Net income $ 00 $ 134
Foreign currency translation adjustments (19.2) (10.1)
Net deferral of hedging losses, net of income taxes (0.8) 3.7)
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale investment, net of income taxes 0.5) —
Minimum pension liability adjustments, net of income taxes 0.8 0.3)
Comprehensive loss $ (19.7) $ (0.7)

As of March 31,2005 and December 31,2004, the available-for-sale investment was reflected in investments on the consolidated balance sheets at its fair
value of $58.4 million and $59.2 million, respectively. For the three months ended March 31,2005 and 2004, the Company did not sell any equity securities
included in this investment, and thus there were no realized gains or losses included in net income for either period. The cost of the investment was $49.1
million at March 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004.

Accumulated other comprehensive loss consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2005 2004

(In millions)
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments $ (674) $ (482
Cumulative deferral of hedging gains, net of income taxes 6.9 7.7
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale investment, net of income taxes 5.6 6.1
Cumulative adjustments to minimum pension liability, net of income taxes (25.8) (26.6)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (80.7) $ (61.0)

Note 12: Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

In the ordinary course of business with customers, vendors and others, the Company issues standby letters of credit, performance bonds, surety bonds and
other guarantees. The majority of these financial instruments represent guarantees of the Company’s future performance. Management does not expect these
financial instruments to result in losses, if any, which would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of
operations.

The Company and FMC Corporation (“FMC”), its former parent, are named defendants in a number of multi-defendant, multi-plaintiff tort lawsuits. Under the
Separation and Distribution Agreement entered into between FMC and the Company during the spin-off of the Company from FMC, FMC is required to
indemnify the Company for certain claims made prior to the spin-off, as well as for other claims related to discontinued operations. The Company expects
that FMC will bear responsibility for the majority of these claims. Certain claims have been asserted subsequent to the spin-off. While the ultimate
responsibility for certain of these claims cannot yet be determined due to lack of identification of the products or premises involved, the Company also
expects that FMC will bear responsibility for a majority of these claims.

In February 2003, the Company initiated court action in the Judicial District Court in Harris County, Texas, against ABB Lummus Global, Inc. (“ABB”),
seeking recovery of scheduled payments owed and compensatory, punitive and other damages. In October 2004, ABB filed a petition to remove the case to
federal court. In February 2005, the United States District Court Southern District of Texas set the matter for trial beginning in November 2005.
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While the results of litigation cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes that the most probable, ultimate resolution of these matters will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Note 13: Business Segment Information
Segment revenue and segment operating profit (loss)

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2005 2004

(In millions)
Revenue
Energy Production Systems $397.8 $ 296.3
Energy Processing Systems 110.3 109.4
Intercompany eliminations (1.0) 2.9)

Subtotal Energy Systems 507.1 402.8
FoodTech 111.9 103.4
Airport Systems 64.7 58.1
Intercompany eliminations 2.1) (1.6)
Total revenue $ 681.6 $ 562.7

Income (loss) before income taxes

Segment operating profit (loss):
Energy Production Systems $ (12 $ 208
7.0

Energy Processing Systems 4.7
Subtotal Energy Systems 5.8 255
FoodTech 34 4.6
Airport Systems 4.1 2.0
Total segment operating profit 13.3 32.1
Corporate items:
Corporate expense(! (7.6) ©64)
Other expense, net® (7.1) (4.8)
Net interest expense (1.2) (2.0)
Total corporate items (15.9) (13.2)
(Loss) income before income taxes (2.6) 18.9
Benefit (provision) for income taxes 2.6 (5.5)
Net income $ 00 $ 134

M Corporate expense primarily includes staff expenses.

@ Other expense, net, comprises expense related to stock options and other stock-based compensation, LIFO inventory adjustments, expense related to
employee pension and other postretirement employee benefits and foreign currency related gains or losses. Stock-based compensation expense
includes the recognition of stock-based awards over the vesting period.
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Segment operating capital employed

March 31, December 31,
2005 2004
(In millions)

Segment operating capital employed (V:
Energy Production Systems $ 396.8 $ 362.1
Energy Processing Systems 174.5 169.1
Subtotal Energy Systems 571.3 531.2
FoodTech 159.0 183.4
Airport Systems 87.2 717
Total segment operating capital employed 817.5 792.3
Segment liabilities included in total segment operating capital employed 876.8 874.1
Corporate @ 181.4 227.5
Total assets $1,875.7 $ 1,893.9

(O]

segment capital. Segment operating capital employed excludes debt, pension liabilities, income taxes and LIFO reserves.
)

customers, accrued payroll and other liabilities.
©]

associated with a specific segment and the fair value of derivatives.
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FMC Technologies’ management views segment operating capital employed, which consists of assets, net of its liabilities, as the primary measure of
Segment liabilities included in total segment operating capital employed consist of trade and other accounts payable, advance payments from

Corporate includes cash, the MODEC, Inc. investment, LIFO inventory reserves, deferred income tax balances, property, plant and equipment not



ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANAL YSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statement under the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995: FMC Technologies, Inc. and its representatives may
from time to time make written or oral statements that are “forward-looking” and provide information that is not historical in nature, including statements that
are or will be contained in this report, the notes to our consolidated financial statements, our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, our
press releases and conference call presentations and our other communications to our stockholders. These statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may be outside of our control and may cause actual results to differ materially from any results, levels of activity,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by any forward-looking statement. These factors include, among other things, the risk factors listed below.

9 s

In some cases, forward-looking statements can be identified by such words or phrases as “will likely result,” “is confident that,” “expects,” “should,” “could,”
“may,” “will continue to,” “believes,” “anticipates,” “predicts,” “forecasts,” “estimates,” “projects,” “potential,” “intends” or similar expressions identifying
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including the negative of those words and phrases.
Such forward-looking statements are based on our current views and assumptions regarding future events, future business conditions and our outlook based
on currently available information. We wish to caution you not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the
date made and involve judgments.
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In connection with the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, we are identifying below important factors that could
affect our financial performance and could cause our actual results for future periods to differ materially from any opinions or statements expressed with
respect to future periods.

Among the important factors that could have an impact on our ability to achieve our operating results and growth plan goals are:

. Increased competition from other companies operating in our industries, some of which may have capital resources equivalent to or greater than
ours;
. Instability and unforeseen changes in economic, political and social conditions in the international markets where we conduct business,

including economically and politically volatile areas such as West Africa, the Middle East, Latin America and the Asia Pacific region, which
could cause or contribute to: foreign currency fluctuations; inflationary and recessionary markets; civil unrest, terrorist attacks and wars; seizure
of assets; trade restrictions; foreign ownership restrictions; restrictions on operations, trade practices, trade partners and investment decisions
resulting from domestic and foreign laws and regulations; changes in governmental laws and regulations and the level of enforcement of laws
and regulations; inability to repatriate income or capital; and reductions in the availability of qualified personnel;

. Increasing business activity involving large subsea and/or offshore projects, which exposes us to increased risks due to the significant technical
and logistical challenges of these projects, their longer lead times and the requirement to dedicate substantial engineering effort and other capital
resources to these projects;

. Inability to complete a project as scheduled or to meet other contractual obligations to our customers, potentially leading to reduced profits or
even losses;

. Severe weather conditions and natural disasters which may cause crop damage, affect the price of oil and gas, and cause damage or delays in
offshore project locations, which may adversely impact the demand for our products and impair our ability to complete significant projects
within required time frames or without incurring significant unanticipated costs;

. Significant changes in interest rates or taxation rates;

. Shortages of raw materials, unanticipated increases in raw material prices (including the price of steel) compared with historical levels, and our
ability to mitigate the impact of higher costs through pricing;
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Inability to implement and effect price increases for our products and services when necessary;

Inherent risks in the marketplace associated with new product introductions and technologies and the development of new manufacturing
processes;

Changes in current prices for crude oil and natural gas and the perceived stability and sustainability of those prices as well as long-term forecasts
can impact capital spending decisions by oil and gas exploration and production companies and may lead to significant changes in the level of
oil and gas exploration, production, development and processing and affect the demand for our products and services;

The effect of governmental policies regarding exploration and development of oil and gas reserves, the ability of the Organization of Petroleum
Exporting Countries (“OPEC”) to set and maintain production levels and pricing and the level of production in non-OPEC countries;

Changes in capital spending levels by the U.S. Government and the impact of economic conditions and political and social issues on
government appropriation decisions, including the procurement of Halvorsen loaders by the U.S. military;

Changes in business strategies and capital spending levels in the airline industry due to changes in international, national, regional and local
economic conditions, war, political instability and terrorism (and the threat thereof), consumer perceptions of airline safety, and costs associated
with safety, security and the weather;

Consolidation of customers in the petroleum exploration, commercial food processing or airline or air freight industries;
Unanticipated issues related to food safety, including costs related to product recalls, regulatory compliance and any related claims or litigation;
Freight transportation delays;

Our ability to integrate, operate and manage newly acquired business operations or joint venture investments, particularly in situations where we
cannot control the actions of our joint venture partner and have only limited rights in controlling the actions of the joint venture;

The risk of not realizing our investment in MODEC, Inc., due to potential impairment in its market value, and/or the potential — even likely —
illiquidity of this investment;

Conditions affecting domestic and international capital and equity markets;
Unexpected changes in the size and timing of regional and/or product markets, particularly for short lead-time products;

Risks associated with litigation, including changes in applicable laws, the development of facts in individual cases, settlement opportunities, the
actions of plaintiffs, judges and juries and the possibility that current reserves relating to our ongoing litigation may prove inadequate;

The effect of the loss of major contracts, our failure to accurately estimate the resources and time required for a fixed price contract, and our
failure to complete our contractual obligations within the time frame and costs committed, especially as it relates to our ongoing project with
Sonatrach-TRC, the Algerian Oil and Gas Company;

The effect of the loss or termination of a strategic alliance with a major customer, particularly as it relates to our Energy Production Systems
businesses;

The effect of labor-related actions, such as strikes, slowdowns and facility occupations;

The loss of key management or other personnel;
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. Developments in technology of competitors and customers that could impact our market share and the demand for our products and services;
. Supply and demand imbalances of certain commodities such as citrus fruit, fruit juices and tomatoes; and

. Environmental and asbestos-related liabilities that may arise in the future that exceed our current reserves.

We wish to caution that the foregoing list of important factors may not be all-inclusive and specifically decline to undertake any obligation to publicly
revise any forward-looking statements that have been made to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such statements or to reflect the occurrence of
anticipated or unanticipated events.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2005 AND 2004

Three Months Ended

March 31, Increase/(Decrease)
2005 2004 $ %

(In millions, except %)
Revenue $681.6 § 5627 $118.9 21.1%
Costs and expenses:

Cost of sales 580.3 450.2 130.1 28.9

Selling, general and administrative expense 88.6 79.4 9.2 11.6

Research and development expense 133 12.4 0.9 73

Total costs and expenses 682.2 542.0 140.2 259

Minority interests 0.8) 0.2 (1.0) *
Net interest expense (1.2) (2.0) 0.8 (40.0)
(Loss) income before income taxes $§ 26) $ 189 $(21.5) (113.8)
(Benefit) provision for income taxes (2.6) 5.5 8.1) (147.3)
Net income $§ 00 §$ 134 $(134) (100.0)%

* Not meaningful

Our total revenue for the first quarter of 2005 increased compared to the same period in 2004, primarily due to continued growth in our Energy Production
Systems business. We continue to benefit from the growing demand for the supply of equipment, especially in subsea systems, used in the major oil and gas
producing regions throughout the world. To a lesser extent, the increase in 2005 revenue also reflected higher revenue in the FoodTech and Airport Systems
business segments. Of the total increase in sales, $25.3 million was attributable to the favorable impact of foreign currency translation.

Cost of sales for the first quarter of 2005 was higher compared to the same period in 2004. Cost of sales totaled 85.1% of sales, up from 80.0% in 2004. The
$27.0 million provision for anticipated losses on our contract with Sonatrach-TRC, the Algerian Oil and Gas Company (“Sonatrach”), recorded in the first
quarter of 2005 was the primary driver of the increase in cost of sales as a percentage of sales. Of the total increase in cost of sales, $22.2 million was
attributable to the impact of foreign currency translation.

Selling, general and administrative expense for the first quarter of 2005 increased compared to the same period in 2004, but declined as a percentage of sales
from 14.1% in 2004 to 13.0% in 2005. Higher costs in our Energy Production Systems business were primarily responsible for the increase, the result of a
higher level of bid and proposal activities and the impact of increased headcount required to support growth in this business segment. Of the total increase in
selling, general and administrative expense, $1.7 million was attributable to the impact of foreign currency translation.

Net interest expense for the first quarter of 2005, was lower compared to the same period in 2004, primarily as a result of lower average debt levels.

Income tax benefit for the three months ended March 31, 2005, was $2.6 million on loss before income taxes of $2.6 million. The difference between the
effective tax rate and the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate related primarily to differing foreign and state tax rates. Income tax expense for the three
months ended March 31,2004, was $5.5 million on income before income taxes of $18.9 million, resulting in an effective income tax rate 0of29%. For this
period, the difference between the effective tax rate and the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate related primarily to differing foreign tax rates.
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We anticipate that our effective tax rate for the full-year 2005 will be approximately 28%. However, we have not completed our analysis of the repatriation
provisions under the American Jobs Creation Act; and therefore, we have not quantified the impact of such provisions on our estimated 2005 effective tax
rate.

Outlook

We estimate that our full-year 2005 diluted earnings per share will be within the range of $1.06 to $1.26 per share. This estimate includes the Sonatrach
provision recognized during the first quarter of 2005. However, this estimate does not include the impact, if any, of income tax expense resulting from foreign
dividend repatriation under the provisions of the American Jobs Creation Act 0£2004.

We expect growth in our Energy Systems businesses over their full-year 2004 results, and FoodTech and Airport Systems are projected to perform at a level
that is equal to or slightly higher than their full-year 2004 results. While we anticipate higher segment operating profit in 2005, our corporate items,
including corporate expense and other expense, are expected to increase over the prior year amounts. Additionally, we project that our effective tax rate for
2005, exclusive of the impact of the American Jobs Creation Act, will be above the 2004 rate.

OPERATING RESULTS OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS
THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2005 AND 2004

Three Months Ended

March 31, Favorable/(Unfavorable)
2005 2004 $ %
(In millions, except %)
Revenue
Energy Production Systems $397.8 $2963 § 1015 34.3%
Energy Processing Systems 1103 109.4 0.9 0.8
Intercompany eliminations (1.0) 2.9) 1.9 *
Subtotal Energy Systems 507.1 402.8 104.3 259
FoodTech 111.9 103.4 8.5 8.2
Airport Systems 64.7 58.1 6.6 114
Intercompany eliminations 2.1) (1.6) 0.5) *
Total revenue $6816 §$ 5627 § 1189 21.1%
Segment Operating Profit (Loss)
Energy Production Systems $ (12) $ 208 $ (22.0) (105.8)%
Energy Processing Systems 7.0 4.7 23 48.9
Subtotal Energy Systems 5.8 25.5 (19.7) (77.3)
FoodTech 34 4.6 (1.2) (26.1)
Airport Systems 4.1 2.0 2.1 105.0
Total segment operating profit 133 32.1 (18.8) (58.6)
Corporate items:
Corporate expense (7.6) 6.4) (1.2) (18.8)
Other expense, net (7.1) (4.8) 2.3) (47.9)
Net interest expense (1.2) (2.0) 0.8 40.0
Total corporate items (15.9) (13.2) 2.7) (20.5)
(Loss) income before income taxes (2.6) 18.9 (21.5) (113.8)
Benefit (provision) for income taxes 2.6 (5.5) 8.1 147.3
Net income $§ 00 §$ 134 $ (134 (100.0)%

* Not meaningful

Segment operating profit (loss) is defined as total segment revenue less segment operating expenses. The following items have been excluded in computing
segment operating profit (loss): corporate staff expense, interest income and expense associated with corporate debt facilities and investments, income taxes
and other expense, net.
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Energy Production Systems

Energy Production Systems’ revenue was higher in the first quarter of 2005 compared to the same period in 2004. Segment revenue is affected by trends in
land and offshore oil and gas exploration and production, including shallow and deepwater development. Favorable shifts in these factors have contributed
to higher revenue from sales of subsea systems. Revenue from sales of subsea systems of $292.9 million in the first quarter of 2005 grew by $101.3 million, or
53%, from $191.6 million in the first quarter of2004. Approximately 80% of the increase in revenue from sales of subsea systems is attributable to higher
volumes, with the remaining 20% due to the favorable impact of foreign currency translation. Subsea volumes increased primarily as a result of progress on
new and ongoing projects located offshore West Africa and Brazil and in the Asia Pacific region, partially offset by a reduction in projects in the Gulf of
Mexico. Additionally, for the first quarter of 2005, increased revenues of $8.9 million in surface products were offset by lower sales of floating production
systems, primarily relating to the Sonatrach project.

Energy Production Systems generated an operating loss in the first quarter of 2005 compared to an operating profit in the same period in 2004. Higher sales
volumes contributed $12.6 million in incremental profit. Offsetting these positive effects was a $27.0 million provision (pretax) for losses on the Sonatrach
project, a result of an increase in estimated total project costs. Additionally, selling, general and administrative expenses were higher by $3.7 million in the
first quarter of 2005 compared to the same period in 2004, attributable to increased bid and proposal activities and the impact of increased headcount
required to support growth in this business segment. The impact of foreign currency translation on the segment operating loss was minimal as the favorable
effect on revenue was offset by similar increases in expenses.

The Sonatrach contract with the floating production systems business involves the supply of an offshore oil loading system. During the third and fourth
quarters of 2004, we recognized a combined $21.4 million (pre-tax) provision for anticipated losses due to an increase in the estimate of our total project
costs, which resulted primarily from severe storms in Algeria delaying completion of the pipeline installation phase of the project. In the first quarter of 2005,
we recorded an additional $27.0 million provision for anticipated losses. We increased our estimate of the total costs to complete the Sonatrach project due
primarily to extended testing and installation costs of the offshore pipelines, caused in part by bad weather conditions and sealing issues discovered during
the final testing of pipeline connections, higher engineering costs related to design changes at three onshore pump stations, and increased project
engineering and project management costs resulting from the additional onshore and offshore requirements. These cost estimates reflect our current
assessment of the project. There may be additional costs, which currently cannot be forecast, as the project proceeds toward its commissioning. We expect the
project to be finalized in the third quarter o£2005.

For 2005, we are expecting another year of growth in operating profit in our Energy Production Systems business. The Sonatrach provision recognized in the
first quarter of 2005 has reduced our initial expectation, such that we now anticipate only a slight increase in operating profit for the year. Our continued
expectation of growth is based on our strong backlog of orders and forecasts of favorable market conditions, including the benefit from continued high oil
and gas prices and increased rig activity worldwide. Additionally, our separation systems business is expected to continue to improve its sales and
profitability in 2005.

Energy Processing Systems

Energy Processing Systems’ revenue was flat for the first quarter of 2005 compared to the same period in 2004. Segment revenues benefited from strong oil
and gas prices as well as the continuing strength in land based drilling activity. These factors contributed to fluid control revenues increasing by $5.6 million
compared to 2004, driven by higher demand for WECO®/Chiksan® products, which are sold primarily to service companies. Additionally, sales of material
handling systems products increased by $3.8 million over the first quarter of2004 due to a stronger U.S. economy. These increases were partially offset by
reduced revenue from measurement systems, which declined by $7.3 million from the first quarter of 2004. The decrease was attributable to lower volumes
caused by delays in receiving orders during the fourth quarter of 2004 and in January and February 2005. In late March 2005, we received $26 million of new
orders for measurement equipment, but due to the late March receipt of these orders, they could not be converted to revenue during the first quarter of2005.

Energy Processing Systems’ operating profit in the first quarter of 2005 increased compared to the same period in 2004. Continued demand for
WECO"/Chiksan” products and improved margins at loading systems resulting from cost saving initiatives drove the increase in profitability. Operating
profit for the first quarter of 2005 includes $2.1 million of costs related to the consolidation of certain facilities to improve efficiencies and reduce costs.

In 2005, we expect Energy Processing Systems to deliver overall growth in operating profit over 2004. We are projecting improved performance from loading
systems, measurement systems and in material handling. In our fluid control business, we now expect demand for WECO®/Chiksan® equipment to be above
2004 levels.
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FoodTech

FoodTech’s revenue increased in the first quarter of 2005 compared with the same period in 2004. Higher volumes of freezing and cooking equipment and
aftermarket products were responsible for an increase of $10.0 million in revenue, reflecting the impact of higher backlog in Europe entering 2005 compared
to 2004 and favorable aftermarket activity in North America and the Asia Pacific region. Additionally, revenue increased by $2.6 million as a result of the
favorable impact of foreign currency translation. The revenue growth was partly offset by a decrease in citrus processing revenue in the U.S. of $3.7 million,
primarily the result of the impact of the 2004 hurricanes on the Florida citrus crop.

FoodTech’s operating profit decreased in the first quarter of 2005 compared to the same period in 2004. Lower operating profit was primarily attributable to
lower volumes in our domestic citrus business, which reduced operating profit by $3.2 million compared to the first quarter of 2004. Higher volumes of
freezing and cooking equipment and aftermarket products, which generated $2.2 million in incremental operating profit in 2005, partially offset the decline.
The impact of foreign currency translation on the segment operating profit was minimal as the favorable effect on revenue was offset by similar increases in
expenses.

Our FoodTech business performance is expected to be essentially level to slightly up compared with 2004 results. We anticipate an increase in profitability
from food processing equipment, primarily related to sterilizer and canning equipment, and from the freezing and food handling product lines. The increase
in profitability is expected to be offset by lower citrus results, attributable in large part to the impact of the 2004 hurricane damage on the Florida citrus crop,
and weaker volumes in tomato harvesting and processing equipment caused by the impact of low tomato paste prices on capital investment in this industry.

Airport Systems

Airport Systems’ revenue was higher in the first quarter of 2005 compared with the same period in 2004. Segment sales are affected by the profitability of our
customers in the airline and air cargo markets. Rising fuel costs and pricing pressures caused by competition among the major airlines have delayed the
industry’s recovery. In the first quarter of 2005, the Jetway " business generated higher revenue of $6.1 million from sales of passenger boarding bridge
equipment, primarily to airport authorities, by completing orders that were taken prior to 2005. Airport service projects provided an incremental $3.7 million
in revenues for 2005, primarily as the result of projects for the Dallas and Los Angeles airports. These increases were partially offset by $2.3 million in lower
sales of Halvorsen loaders, consistent with our forecasted decline in Halvorsen loader shipments, as deliveries decreased from 16 units in the first quarter of
2004 to 6 in the same period 0f2005. Sales of Halvorsen loaders fluctuate based on the status of governmental approval of funding and the requirements of
the U.S. Air Force.

Airport Systems’ operating profit in the first quarter of 2005 increased compared with the same period in 2004, primarily attributable to a $2.7 million gain
on the sale of excess land adjacent to one of our facilities. The higher sales volumes achieved in 2005 were offset by margin declines caused by higher
material costs, primarily steel, that we were not entirely able to pass on to our customers and pricing pressures resulting from economic factors in the airline
industry.

We are projecting operating profit at Airport Systems to be up slightly in 2005. World airline passenger traffic is anticipated to grow by approximately 6% in
2005. However, the traditional major airlines continue to suffer the challenges of higher fuel costs, low airfares and high labor costs, which are delaying the
industry’s recovery. While we have received an order for Halvorsen loaders for 2005 delivery, the total anticipated Halvorsen loader volume of 40 units in
2005 is lower than the 2004 volume. We expect our commercial businesses to more than offset the impact of the forecasted decline in Halvorsen loader
shipments.

Corporate Items

Corporate expense in the first quarter of 2005 was $7.6 million, $1.2 million above the prior-year period primarily due to audit-related expenses for Sarbanes-
Oxley. Other expense, net, of $7.1 million increased $2.3 million compared to the prior-year period due to an unfavorable impact of foreign currency gains
and losses, higher LIFO expense and higher stock-based and other incentive compensation expense.
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Inbound Orders and Order Backlog

Inbound orders represent the estimated sales value of confirmed customer orders received during the reporting period.

Inbound Orders

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2005 2004
(In millions)
Energy Production Systems $ 308.6 $ 260.7
Energy Processing Systems 1294 118.6
Intercompany eliminations 0.4) 4.2)
Subtotal Energy Systems 437.6 375.1
FoodTech 1345 153.9
Airport Systems 56.5 55.6
Intercompany eliminations 3.2) 2.1)
Total inbound orders $ 6254 $ 5825
Order backlog is calculated as the estimated sales value of unfilled, confirmed customer orders at the reporting date.
Order Backlog
March 31, December 31, March 31,
2005 2004 2004
(In millions)
Energy Production Systems $1,133.4 $ 12227 $ 845.1
Energy Processing Systems 1239 104.8 146.4
Intercompany eliminations (0.3) (1.0) (6.8)
Subtotal Energy Systems 1,257.0 1,326.5 984.7
FoodTech 165.3 142.7 168.1
Airport Systems 111.6 119.8 127.0
Intercompany eliminations (3.0) (1.9) 1.7)
Total order backlog $1,530.9 $ 1,587.1 $1,278.1

The portion of total backlog at March 31,2005 that we project will be recorded as revenue after fiscal year 2005 is approximately $262.1 million.

Energy Production Systems’ order backlog at March 31,2005, decreased by $89.3 million compared to December 31,2004, as a result of lower inbound
orders for subsea systems in the first quarter of 2005 than in the immediately preceding quarters and the reduction in floating production systems backlog of
$21.2 million caused by progress on the Sonatrach project. Order backlog at March 31,2005 increased by $288.3 million compared to March 31,2004,
primarily attributable to subsea systems order backlog, which increased by $397.2 million. Subsea order backlog at March 31,2005, included subsea projects
associated with all of the major offshore oil and gas producing regions, such as BP’s Block 18 Greater Plutonio offshore West Africa and Norsk Hydro ASA’s
Ormen Lange in the North Sea. Surface systems order backlog increased by $45.9 million compared to March 31, 2004, reflecting stronger market conditions
related to the upward trend in rig count activity and in oil and gas prices. A reduction in order backlog for floating production systems partially offset the
increase. Compared with March 31,2004, lower order backlog for floating production systems of $157.0 million was attributable to progress we have made
toward completion of existing contracts, including the Sonatrach project.

Energy Processing Systems’ order backlog at March 31,2005, increased by $19.1 million compared to December 31,2004, as a result of increases of $9.2
million and $10.8 million for fluid control and measurement systems, respectively. Fluid control order backlog increased as a result of increased service
company demand for WECO®/Chiksan® products and stronger demand for oil and gas pump products, while measurement backlog reflects the receipt of new
orders in late March 2005. When compared with March 31, 2004, order backlog at March 31,2005, decreased by $22.5 million. Order backlog of material
handling systems at March 31,2004, included a significant coal fired power generation bulk conveying system.

FoodTech’s order backlog at March 31,2005, increased by $22.6 million compared to December 31, 2004, primarily attributable to higher order backlog for
canning equipment. When compared with March 31,2004, order backlog at March 31,2005 decreased by $2.8 million due to declines in order backlog for
fruit and vegetable processing equipment offsetting the increase related to canning equipment.
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Airport Systems’ order backlog at March 31, 2005, declined by $8.2 million when compared with December 31, 2004. Order backlog decreased for Jetway®
passenger boarding bridges as a result of lower North American demand. However, the total decrease was partially offset by an increase in order backlog for
airport service projects with new projects in the Dallas and Manchester airports. When compared with March 31, 2004, order backlog at March 31,2005,
decreased by $15.4 million. The decline resulted primarily from a reduction in backlog for Jetway” passenger boarding bridges.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our net debt at March 31,2005, and December 31, 2004, was $94.0 million and $39.0 million, respectively. Net debt includes short and long-term debt and
the current portion of long-term debt, net of cash and cash equivalents. The increase in net debt was primarily due to the increase in working capital
requirements during the first quarter of 2005 in our Energy Production Systems segment. Our working capital balances can vary significantly quarter to
quarter depending on the payment terms and timing of delivery on key contracts.

Cash Flows

Cash required by operating activities of continuing operations was $49.4 million and $9.7 million for the three months ended March 31,2005 and 2004,
respectively. The increase in cash required by operating activities was primarily due to the increase in working capital requirements of $18.1 million during
2005. The changes in working capital requirements included an increase in cash outflows for inventory purchases partially offset by cash collections on trade
receivables in the quarter. We also attribute a portion of our 2005 reduction in operating cash flows to lower profits. Our pension plan contributions increased
in 2005 versus 2004. At March 31,2005, our year-to-date pension plan contributions amounted to $6.2 million, substantially all of which was contributed to
the UK. and Norway qualified pension plans.

Cash required by investing activities was $6.6 million and $12.3 million for the three months ended March 31,2005 and 2004, respectively. The decrease in
cash required by investing activities was primarily due to $4.4 million in higher proceeds from the sale of long-lived assets, including $3.8 million in
proceeds from the sale of excess land adjacent to an Airport Systems’ facility in the first quarter of 2005.

Cash provided by financing activities was $6.7 million and $34.1 million for the three months ended March 31,2005 and 2004, respectively. In 2004, our
financing activities included net proceeds from borrowings of approximately $24.2 million as compared to net proceeds of $3.2 from borrowings in 2005.
Additionally, the decrease in cash provided by financing activities was attributable to cash outflows of $5.7 million for the repurchase of outstanding
common stock during the first quarter of 2005.

Debt and Liquidity

The following is a summary of our credit facilities at March 31, 2005:

(In millions)

Commercial
Commitment Debt Paper Letters of Unused
Description Amount Outstanding Outstanding (@) Credit ® Capacity Maturity
Five-year revolving credit facility $ 250.0 — $ 1538 § 82 § 88.0 April 2006
Five-year revolving credit facility 250.0 — — 7.8 2422 April 2009
$ 500.0 — $ 153.8 $ 16.0 $330.20

@ Our available capacity under our revolving credit facilities is reduced by any outstanding commercial paper.

®) The five-year revolving credit facilities allow us to obtain a total of $250.0 million in standby letters of credit. Our available capacity is reduced by
any outstanding letters of credit associated with these facilities.

© The outstanding balance of commercial paper combined with the debt outstanding under the revolving credit facilities and the amount in standby
letters of credit is limited to $500.0 million.

Among other restrictions, the terms of the committed credit agreements include negative covenants related to liens and financial covenants related to
consolidated tangible net worth, debt to earnings ratios and interest coverage ratios. We are in compliance with all debt covenants as of March 31,2005. Our
five-year revolving credit facility maturing April 2006 carries an effective annual interest rate of 100 basis points above the one-month London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”). The five-year revolving credit facility maturing April 2009 carries an effective annual interest rate of 87.5 basis points above the
one-month LIBOR.
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We initiated a commercial paper program in 2003 to provide an alternative vehicle for meeting short-term funding requirements. Under this program and
subject to available capacity under our committed revolving credit facilities, we have the ability to access up to $400.0 million of short-term financing
through our commercial paper dealers. We have interest rate swaps related to $150.0 million of our $153.8 million in commercial paper outstanding at March
31,2005. The effect of these interest rate swaps, which mature in June 2008, is to fix the effective annual interest rate on these borrowings at 2.9%.

We entered into a sale-leaseback agreement during the third quarter of2004. We sold a building for $9.7 million in net proceeds, which were used to reduce
other balance sheet debt. We are accounting for the transaction as a financing and are amortizing the obligation using an effective annual interest rate of
5.37% over the lease term of ten years. Our annual payments associated with this obligation total $0.9 million.

Other domestic and international borrowings totaled $2.8 million and $3.4 million at March 31,2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively.

Outlook

We are authorized to repurchase up to two million shares of our common stock. We announced plans to begin the repurchase of shares of our outstanding
common stock during 2005, and during the first quarter of 2005, we repurchased 170,700 shares. The timing and amount of further repurchases will depend
on market conditions.

We plan to meet our cash requirements in 2005 with cash generated from operations, our available credit facilities and commercial paper.

In 2005, we expect to pay previously accrued income taxes of approximately $27 million, primarily due to the completion of significant subsea projects in
Norway. We included this obligation on our consolidated balance sheets in current income taxes payable.

For 2005, we estimate capital expenditures will be in the range of $65-$70 million, compared with 2004 capital spending of approximately $50 million. The
anticipated increase in the level of capital spending is partly attributable to expenditures planned in Malaysia, Nigeria and Angola by Energy Production
Systems to support our subsea business.

During the remainder 0of 2005, we anticipate contributing approximately $23 million to our pension plans, including $15 million to our domestic qualified
pension plan, which does not have a minimum funding requirement for 2005. Using our current assumptions, we will not have a minimum funding
requirement on the domestic qualified pension plan until 2013.

We continue to evaluate acquisitions, divestitures and joint ventures in the ordinary course of business.

We have not completed our analysis of the repatriation provisions under the American Jobs Creation Act 0f2004, and thus, have not determined the amount
of foreign earnings to be repatriated or the timing of any dividends. However, if we do proceed with a repatriation plan, we will consider modifying our debt
structure, such as incurring debt at a foreign subsidiary, to fund dividends to the U.S. The repatriated earnings would be reinvested in our domestic
operations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, for a discussion of our critical accounting estimates. During the three
months ended March 31,2005, there were no material changes in our judgments and assumptions associated with the development of our critical accounting
estimates.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modemization Act 02003 (the “Act”) was signed into law on December 8,2003. The Act introduces a
prescription drug benefit under Medicare (“Medicare Part D) as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans that provide a
prescription drug benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. Under FASB Financial Staff Position (“FSP”) 106-1, issued in January
2004, we elected to defer recognizing the effect of the Act until the pending authoritative guidance on the accounting for the federal subsidy was issued.
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In May 2004, the FASB issued FSP 106-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act 0f2003,” which provides guidance on accounting for the effects of the Act and also requires certain disclosures. Under FSP 106-2, plan
sponsors are required to determine whether their retiree drug coverage is actuarially equivalent to the Medicare Part D coverage. In the first quarter o£2005,
we completed our evaluation of the benefits provided by our plan and concluded that the benefits are not actuarially equivalent to those under Medicare Part
D. Therefore, our reported net periodic benefit cost does not reflect any amount associated with the federal subsidy. In the future, we may consider amending
our retiree health program to coordinate with the new Medicare prescription drug program or to receive the direct subsidy from the government.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

There have been no material changes in reported market risks from the information reported in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31,2004.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the direction of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of the end of the period covered by this report, and have concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective. During the quarter ended March 31, 2005, there was one change in our internal control over financial
reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. In January 2005, we enacted
various process and information system enhancements in our Energy Production Systems segment related to the implementation of SAP software at our
Houston subsea systems facility. These process and information system enhancements have resulted in modifications to the internal controls principally
supporting the accounts receivable, inventory management and accounts payable processes. There have been no other significant changes in internal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls over financial reporting subsequent to the evaluation date.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
FMC Technologies, Inc.:

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of FMC Technologies, Inc. and consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31,2005, and the
related consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the three-months ended March 31,2005 and 2004. These consolidated financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management.

We conducted our review in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). A review of interim financial
information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the consolidated financial statements referred to above for them
to be in conformity U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have previously audited, in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance
sheet of FMC Technologies, Inc. and consolidated subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, cash flows and
changes in stockholders’ equity for the year then ended (not presented herein); and in our report dated March 10, 2005, we expressed an unqualified opinion
on those consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31,
2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated balance sheet from which it has been derived.

/sl KPMG LLP

Chicago, Illinois
May 9,2005
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are named defendants in a number of multi-defendant, multi-plaintiff tort lawsuits. Under the Separation and Distribution Agreement with FMC
Corporation, which contains key provisions relating to our 2001 spin-off from FMC Corporation, FMC Corporation is required to indemnify us for certain
claims made prior to the spin-off, as well as for other claims related to discontinued operations. We expect that FMC Corporation will bear responsibility for
the majority of these claims. Certain claims have been asserted subsequent to the spin-off. While the ultimate responsibility for certain of these claims cannot
yet be determined due to lack ofidentification of the products or premises involved, we also expect that FMC Corporation will bear responsibility fora
majority of these claims.

In February 2003, we initiated court action in the Judicial District Court in Harris County, Texas, against ABB Lummus Global, Inc. (“ABB”), seeking
recovery of scheduled payments owed and compensatory, punitive and other damages. In October 2004, ABB filed a petition to remove the case to federal
court. In February 2005, the United States District Court Southern District of Texas set the matter for trial beginning in November 2005.

While the results of litigation cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes that the most probable, ultimate resolution of these matters will not
have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.
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ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company had no unregistered sales of equity securities during the three-months ended March 31,2005. The following table summarizes repurchases of

our common stock during the three-months ended March 31, 2005.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Total Number of

Total Number of
Shares Purchased as
Part of Publicly

Maximum Number
of Shares that May
Yet Be Purchased

Shares Average Price Paid per Announced Plans or under the Plans or
Period Purchased Share Programs () Programs (b)
January 1,2005 — January 31, 2005 3,000 $ 30.52 — —
February 1, 2005 — February 28,2005 1,470 $ 32.75 — 2,000,000
March 1,2005 — March 31,2005 180,500 $ 33.67 170,700 1,829,300
Total 184,970 $ 33.61 170,700 1,829,300
@ Represents 170,700 shares of common stock repurchased and held in treasury and 14,270 shares of common stock purchased and held in an employee

benefit trust established for the FMC Technologies, Inc. Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan. In addition to these shares purchased on the open
market, we sold 12,490 shares of registered common stock held in this trust, as directed by the beneficiaries, during the three months ended March 31,

2005.

(®) On February 7,2005, we announced a plan to repurchase shares of our outstanding common stock during 2005, pursuant to a repurchase program
approved by our Board of Directors. Under this program, we are authorized to repurchase up to two million shares of common stock through open

market purchases.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
(a) Exhibits

Number in
Exhibit Table

10.4d

10.4e

10.4f

10.4¢g

10.4h

10.4i

10.4

15

31.1
312
321

322

Description
Form of Grant Agreement for Long Term Incentive Restricted Stock Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive
Compensation and Stock Plan (Employee).

Form of Grant Agreement for Long Term Incentive Restricted Stock Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive
Compensation and Stock Plan (Non-Employee Director).

Form of Grant Agreement for Key Manager Restricted Stock Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive
Compensation and Stock Plan.

Form of Grant Agreement for Non-Qualified Stock Option Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive
Compensation and Stock Plan (Employee).

Form of Grant Agreement for Non-Qualified Stock Option Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive
Compensation and Stock Plan (Non-Employee Director).

Form of Grant Agreement for Stock Appreciation Rights Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive
Compensation and Stock Plan.

Form of Grant Agreement for Performance Units Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive Compensation and
Stock Plan.

Letter re: unaudited interim financial information.
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act 0f2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act 0f2002.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(Registrant)

/s/ Ronald D. Mambu

Ronald D. Mambu
Vice President, Controller, and
duly authorized officer

Date: May 9,2005
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Number in
Exhibit Table

10.4d

10.4e

10.4f

10.4¢

10.4h

10.4i

10.4j

15

31.1
31.2
32.1

322

Description
Form of Grant Agreement for Long Term Incentive Restricted Stock Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive
Compensation and Stock Plan (Employee).

Form of Grant Agreement for Long Term Incentive Restricted Stock Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive
Compensation and Stock Plan (Non-Employee Director).

Form of Grant Agreement for Key Manager Restricted Stock Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive
Compensation and Stock Plan.

Form of Grant Agreement for Non-Qualified Stock Option Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive Compensation
and Stock Plan (Employee).

Form of Grant Agreement for Non-Qualified Stock Option Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive Compensation
and Stock Plan (Non-Employee Director).

Form of Grant Agreement for Stock Appreciation Rights Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive Compensation
and Stock Plan.

Form of Grant Agreement for Performance Units Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive Compensation and
Stock Plan.

Letter re: unaudited interim financial information.
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act 0£2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act 0f2002.
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Exhibit 10.4d

LONG TERM INCENTIVE RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT
PURSUANT TO THE FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION AND STOCK PLAN

This Agreement is made as of the day of 200__ (the “Grant Date”) by FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Delaware corporation, (the
“Company”’) and XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX (the “Employee”).

In 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) adopted the FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan (the
“Plan”). The Plan, as it may be amended and continued, is incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement and will control the rights and
obligations of the Company and the Employee under this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided, capitalized terms have the meaning provided in the Plan.
To the extent there is a conflict between the Plan and this Agreement, the Plan will prevail.

The Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Committee”) determined that it would be to the competitive advantage and interest of the Company
and its stockholders to grant an award of restricted stock to the Employee as an inducement to remain in the service of the Company or one of'its affiliates
(collectively, the “Employer”), and as an incentive for increased efforts during such service.

The Committee, on behalf of the Company, grants to the Employee an award of XXXXXXXXXXX shares of restricted stock (the “Restricted Shares™) of
the Company’s common stock par value of $0.01 per share (the “Common Stock”) upon the following terms and conditions:

1. Vesting. The Restricted Shares will vest and be immediately transferable on XXXXXXXXXX (the “Vesting Date”). Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the Restricted Shares will vest and be immediately transferable in the event of the Employee’s death or Disability, or a Change in Control of the Company.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of the Employee’s retirement under the Company’s pension plan on or after age 62, the Restricted Shares will
vest and be immediately transferable on the Vesting Date. All Restricted Shares will be forfeited upon termination of the Employee’s employment with the
Employer before the Vesting Date for a reason other than death, Disability or retirement under the Company’s pension plan on or after age 62.

2. Adjustment. The Committee may make equitable substitutions or adjustments in the Restricted Shares as it determines to be appropriate in the event
ofany corporate event or transaction such as a stock split, merger, consolidation, separation, including a spin-off or other distribution of stock or property of
the Company, reorganization or any partial or complete liquidation of the Company.
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3. Rights as Stockholder.

(a) The Restricted Shares will be issued in the form of a book entry registration. The Company may issue a stock certificate (the “Certificate”) in the
Employee’s name representing the Restricted Shares prior to the Vesting Date, in which case, the Employee will execute a stock power in favor of the
Company, the Certificate will be held by the Secretary of the Company (the “Escrow Agent”) and will be imprinted with a legend stating that the Restricted
Shares represented by the Certificate may not be sold, exchanged, transferred, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise disposed of except in accordance with this
Agreement. The Escrow Agent will hold the Certificate until the Vesting Date. As soon as practicable after the Vesting Date the Company will issue
unlegended Certificates for Common Stock to the Employee and the Employee will surrender any legended Certificates representing the Restricted Shares, if
applicable.

(b) Prior to the Vesting Date, the Employee may not vote, sell, exchange, transfer, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise dispose of any ofthe Restricted
Shares. Notwithstanding the foregoing the Employee may prior to the Vesting Date pledge Restricted Shares as security for a loan from the Company to
obtain funds to pay the option price for any stock options granted under the Plan. The Restricted Shares have Dividend Equivalent Rights.

4. No Limitation on Rights of the Company. The granting of Restricted Shares will not in any way affect the right or power of the Company to make
adjustments, reclassifications or changes in its capital or business structure or to merge, consolidate, reincorporate, dissolve, liquidate or sell or transfer all or
any part of its business or assets.

5. Employment. Nothing in this Agreement or in the Plan will be construed as constituting a commitment, guarantee, agreement or understanding of
any kind or nature that the Employer will continue to employ the Employee, or as affecting in any way the right of the Employer to terminate the
employment of the Employee at any time.

6. Government Regulation. The Company’s obligation to deliver Common Stock following the Vesting Date will be subject to all applicable laws,
rules and regulations and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or national securities exchanges as may be required.

7. Withholding. The Employer will comply with all applicable withholding tax laws, and will be entitled to take any action necessary to effectuate
such compliance. The Company may withhold a portion of the Common Stock to which the Employee or beneficiary otherwise would be entitled equivalent
in value to the taxes required to be withheld, determined based upon the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock. For purposes of withholding, Fair Market
Value shall be equal to the opening price of the Common Stock on the Vesting Date, or, if the Vesting Date is not a business day, the next business day
immediately following the Vesting Date.

8. Notice. Any notice to the Company provided for in this Agreement will be addressed to it in care of'its Secretary, FMC Technologies, Inc., 200 East
Randolph Drive, Chicago, Illinois 60601, and any notice to the Employee (or other person entitled to

2.



receive the Restricted Shares) will be addressed to such person at the Employee’s address now on file with the Company, or to such other address as either
may designate to the other in writing. Any notice will be deemed to be duly given when enclosed in a properly sealed envelope addressed as stated above
and deposited, postage paid, in a post office or branch post office regularly maintained by the United States government.

9. Administration. The Committee administers the Plan. The Employee’s rights under this Agreement are expressly subject to the terms and conditions
of'the Plan, a copy of which is attached hereto, including any guidelines the Committee adopts from time to time.

10. Binding Effect. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and permitted assigns.

11. Sole Agreement. This Agreement is the entire agreement between the parties to it, and any and all prior oral and written representations are merged
into this Agreement. This Agreement may only be amended by written agreement between the Company and the Employee.

12. Governing Law. The interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware.

13. Privacy. Employee acknowledges and agrees to the Employer transferring certain personal data of such Employee to the Company for purposes of
implementing, performing or administering the Plan or any related benefit. Employee expressly gives his consent to the Employer and the Company to
process such personal data.

Executed as of the Grant Date.
FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

This document constitutes part of a prospectus covering securities that have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933.
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Exhibit 10.4e

FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC. RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT
FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS

This Agreement is made as of XXXXX day of XXXXXXXXXXXX (the “Grant Date”) by and between FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Delaware
corporation, (the “Company”’) and XXXXXXXXXXXXXX (the “Director”).

In 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) adopted the FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan (the
“Plan”). The Plan, as it may be amended and continued, is incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement and controls the rights and
obligations of the Company and the Director under this Agreement. The Board has determined that it would be to the competitive advantage and interest of
the Company and its stockholders to grant restricted stock units to the Director as an inducement to remain in the service of the Company, and as an
incentive for increased efforts during such service.

Now, therefore, the Board, on behalf of the Company hereby grants XXXXXXXXXXX (XXXX) Restricted Stock Units to the Director on the Grant Date
subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and the rules as may be applied by the Board.

Executed as of the Grant Date
FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

This document constitutes part of a prospectus covering securities that have been registered under the Securities Act 0f 1933.



Exhibit 10.4f

KEY MANAGER RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT
PURSUANT TO THE FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION AND STOCK PLAN

This Agreement is made as of the day of
“Company”) and XXXXXXXXXX the “Employee”).

200__ (the “Grant Date”) by FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Delaware corporation, (the

In 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) adopted the FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan (the
“Plan”). The Plan, as it may be amended and continued, is incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement and will control the rights and
obligations of the Company and the Employee under this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided, capitalized terms have the meaning provided in the Plan.
To the extent there is a conflict between the Plan and this Agreement, the Plan will prevail.

The Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Committee”) determined that it would be to the competitive advantage and interest of the Company
and its stockholders to grant an award of restricted stock to the Employee as an inducement to remain in the service of the Company or one of'its affiliates
(collectively, the “Employer”), and as an incentive for increased efforts during such service.

The Committee, on behalf of the Company, grants to the Employee an award of XXXXXXXX shares of restricted stock (the “Restricted Shares”) of the
Company’s common stock, par value of $0.01 per share (the “Common Stock™) upon the following terms and conditions:

1. Vesting. The Restricted Shares will vest and be immediately transferable on XXXXXXXX (the “Vesting Date”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, (a)
the Restricted Shares will vest and be immediately transferable in the event of the Employee’s death or Disability, or a Change in Control of the Company
and (b) a prorated portion of the Restricted Shares (to be prorated based on the time worked after the Grant Date and prior to the Vesting Date) will vest and be
immediately transferable in the event of the Employee’s termination of employment by the Employer prior to the Vesting Date without Cause. All Restricted
Shares will be forfeited upon termination of the Employee’s employment with the Employer before the Vesting Date for a reason other than death, Disability
or termination of employment by the Employer without Cause.

2. Adjustment. The Committee may make equitable substitutions or adjustments in the Restricted Shares as it determines to be appropriate in the event
of any corporate event or transaction such as a stock split, merger, consolidation, separation, including a spin-off or other distribution of stock or property of
the Company, reorganization, or any partial or complete liquidation of the Company.

3. Rights as Stockholder.

(a) The Restricted Shares will be issued in the form of a book entry registration. The Company may issue a stock certificate (the “Certificate”) in the
Employee’s name representing the Restricted Shares prior to the Vesting Date, in which case, the Employee will execute a stock power in favor of the
Company, the Certificate will be held by the Secretary of the Company (the “Escrow Agent”) and will be imprinted with a legend stating that the Restricted
Shares represented by the Certificate may not be sold, exchanged, transferred,



pledged, hypothecated or otherwise disposed of except in accordance with this Agreement. The Escrow Agent will hold the Certificate until the Vesting Date.
As soon as practicable after the Vesting Date the Company will issue unlegended Certificates for Common Stock to the Employee and the Employee will
surrender any legended Certificates representing the Restricted Shares, if applicable.

(b) Prior to the Vesting Date, the Employee may not vote, sell, exchange, transfer, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise dispose of any of the Restricted
Shares. Notwithstanding the foregoing the Employee may prior to the Vesting Date pledge Restricted Shares as security for a loan from the Company to
obtain funds to pay the option price for any stock options granted under the Plan. The Restricted Shares have Dividend Equivalent Rights.

4. No Limitation on Rights of the Company. The granting of Restricted Shares will not in any way affect the right or power of the Company to make
adjustments, reclassifications or changes in its capital or business structure or to merge, consolidate, reincorporate, dissolve, liquidate or sell or transfer all or
any part of its business or assets.

5. Employment. Nothing in this Agreement or in the Plan will be construed as constituting a commitment, guarantee, agreement or understanding of
any kind or nature that the Employer will continue to employ the Employee, or as affecting in any way the right of the Employer to terminate the
employment of the Employee at any time.

6. Government Regulation. The Company’s obligation to deliver Common Stock following the Vesting Date will be subject to all applicable laws,
rules and regulations and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or national securities exchanges as may be required.

7. Withholding. The Employer will comply with all applicable withholding tax laws, and will be entitled to take any action necessary to effectuate
such compliance. The Company may withhold a portion of the Common Stock to which the Employee or beneficiary otherwise would be entitled equivalent
in value to the taxes required to be withheld, determined based upon the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock. For purposes of withholding, Fair Market
Value shall be equal to the opening price of the Common Stock on the Vesting Date, or, if the Vesting Date is not a business day, the next business day
immediately following the Vesting Date.

8. Notice. Any notice to the Company provided for in this Agreement will be addressed to it in care of'its Secretary, FMC Technologies, Inc., 200 East
Randolph Drive, Chicago, Illinois 60601, and any notice to the Employee (or other person entitled to receive the Restricted Shares) will be addressed to such
person at the Employee’s address now on file with the Company, or to such other address as either may designate to the other in writing. Any notice will be
deemed to be duly given when enclosed in a properly sealed envelope addressed as stated above and deposited, postage paid, in a post office or branch post
office regularly maintained by the United States government.

9. Administration. The Committee administers the Plan. The Employee’s rights under this Agreement are expressly subject to the terms and conditions
of'the Plan, a copy of which is attached hereto, including any guidelines the Committee adopts from time to time.

10. Binding Effect. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and permitted assigns.



11. Sole Agreement. This Agreement is the entire agreement between the parties to it, and any and all prior oral and written representations are merged
into this Agreement. This Agreement may only be amended by written agreement between the Company and the Employee.

12. Governing Law. The interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware.

13. Privacy. Employee acknowledges and agrees to the Employer transferring certain personal data of such Employee to the Company for purposes of
implementing, performing or administering the Plan or any related benefit. Employee expressly gives his consent to the Employer and the Company to
process such personal data.

Executed as of the Grant Date.

FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

This document constitutes part of a prospectus covering securities that have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933.



Exhibit 10.4g

NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
PURSUANT TO THE FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION AND STOCK PLAN

This Agreement is made as of the day of ,200__ (the “Grant Date”) by FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Delaware corporation, (the
“Company”’) and XXXXXXXXXXXXX (the “Employee”).

In 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) adopted the FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan (the
“Plan”). The Plan, as it may be amended and continued, is incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement and will control the rights and
obligations of the Company and the Employee under this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided, capitalized terms have the meaning provided in the Plan.
To the extent there is a conflict between the Plan and this Agreement, the Plan will prevail.

The Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Committee”) determined that it would be to the competitive advantage and interest of the Company
and its stockholders to grant a stock option to the Employee as an inducement to remain in the service of the Company or one of'its affiliates (collectively,
the “Employer”), and as an incentive for increased efforts during such service.

The Committee, on behalf of the Company, grants to the Employee a nonqualified stock option (the “Option”) to purchase an aggregate of XXXXXX
shares of the common stock of the Company par value of $0.01 per share (the “Common Stock”) at a price of XXXXXX per share upon the following terms
and conditions:

1. Time of Exercise of Option. Subject to its termination as provided in Section 3, below, and to the satisfaction of the requirements of Section 2 below,
the Option is exercisable at any time or from time to time, in whole or in part, on or after XXXXXXXX (the “Vesting Date”). Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the Option will become immediately exercisable by the Employee or by the person or persons to whom the Employee’s rights under the Option pass by will
or by the applicable laws of descent and distribution, in the event of the Employee’s death or Disability, or a Change in Control of the Company.

2. Employment. Subject to Section 3, below, it is a condition precedent to the right to exercise the Option that the Employee remain in the employ of
the Employer continuously during the period from the Grant Date to the earliest of (a) the Vesting Date, (b) the date of the Employee’s retirement under the
Company’s pension plan on or after age 62, (c) the date of the Employee’s death or (d) the date of the Employee’s Disability. Any portion of the Option that
is not vested will be forfeited upon the Employee’s termination of employment with the Employer before the Vesting Date for a reason other than the
Employee’s death, Disability or retirement under the Company’s pension plan on or after age 62.



3. Termination of Option. The Option and all rights thereunder, to the extent such rights will not have been exercised, will terminate and become null
and void on the earliest of the date (a) that is ten years after the Grant Date, (b) that is three months after the date the Employee ceases to be an employee of an
Employer for any reason other than death, Disability or retirement under the Company’s pension plan on or after age 62, (c) that is five years from the date of
the Employee’s retirement under the Company’s pension plan on or after age 62 or termination due to Disability, (d) that is one year from the date of the
Employee’s death or (e) the Employee is terminated for Cause, (such date being referred to as the “Option Expiration Date”).

4. Right to Exercise. The Option may be exercised at any time on or after the date on which it first becomes exercisable under Sections 1 and 2, above,
to and including the Option Expiration Date by the Employee or by the person or persons to whom the Employee’s rights under the Option will pass by will
or by the applicable laws of descent and distribution. In no event may the Option be exercised to any extent by anyone before it becomes exercisable
pursuant to Sections | and 2, above, or after the Option Expiration Date.

5. Method of Exercise. The Employee (or other person entitled to do so) may exercise the Option with respect to all or any part of the shares then
subject to such exercise (a) by giving the Company written notice of such exercise, specifying the Grant Date, the number of such shares as to which the
Option is being exercised, paying by cash or check, bank draft or postal or express money order payable to the order of the Company in lawful money of the
United States an amount equal to the sum of the option price of such shares and the amount of any taxes required to be withheld by the Company (the
“Option Payment”) or by shares of Common Stock that have been held by the Employee for at least six months at the time of exercise, or, that were purchased
by the Employee on the open market, having a Fair Market Value at the date of such notice equal to the Option Payment or by a combination of cash, check,
draft, money order and such shares, and (b) by giving satisfactory assurance in writing that such shares will not be publicly offered for sale, other than on a
national securities exchange. The Company may from time to time make available alternative methods of exercise upon notice to the Employee. As soon as
practicable after receipt of such notice and payment, the Company will, without transfer or issue tax or other incidental expense to the Employee or other
person exercising the Option, deliver to such Employee or other person a certificate or certificates for Common Stock. If there is a failure to accept delivery of
all or part of the Common Stock upon tender or delivery thereof, the right to purchase such undelivered Common Stock may be terminated by the Company.

6. Adjustment. The Committee may make equitable substitutions or adjustments in the Option and/or Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the
Option as it determines to be appropriate in the event of any corporate event or transaction such as a stock split, merger, consolidation, separation, including
a spin-off or other distribution of stock or property of the Company, reorganization or any partial or complete liquidation of the Company.
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7. Rights Prior to Exercise. The Option will during the Employee’s lifetime be exercisable only by the Employee, and neither the Option nor any right
thereunder will be assignable or transferable by the Employee by voluntary or involuntary act, operation of law, or otherwise, other than by testamentary
bequest or devise or the laws of descent and distribution. Any effort to assign or transfer a right, except as provided for herein, will be ineffective and may
result in the Company terminating the Option. Neither the Employee nor any other person entitled to exercise the Option will have any of the rights of a
stockholder with respect to the shares subject to the Option, except to the extent that Common Stock will have been issued upon the exercise of the Option.

8. No Limitation on Rights ofthe Company. The granting of the Option will not in any way affect the right or power of the Company to make
adjustments, reclassifications or changes in its capital or business structure or to merge, consolidate, reincorporate, dissolve, liquidate or sell or transfer all or
any part of its business or assets.

9. Employment. Nothing in this Agreement or in the Plan will be construed as constituting a commitment, guarantee, agreement or understanding of
any kind or nature that the Employer will continue to employ the Employee, or as affecting in any way the right of the Employer to terminate the
employment of the Employee at any time.

10. Government Regulation. The Company’s obligation to deliver Common Stock upon exercise of the Option will be subject to all applicable laws,
rules and regulations and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or national securities exchanges as may be required.

11. Withholding. The Employer will comply with all applicable withholding tax laws, and will be entitled to take any action necessary to effectuate
such compliance.

12. Notice. Any notice to the Company provided for in this Agreement will be addressed to it in care of'its Secretary, FMC Technologies, Inc., 200 East
Randolph Drive, Chicago, Illlinois 60601, and any notice to the Employee (or other person entitled to exercise the Option) will be addressed to the
Employee’s address now on file with the Company, or to such other address as either may designate to the other in writing. Any notice will be deemed to be
duly given when enclosed in a properly sealed envelope and addressed as stated above, and deposited, postage paid, in a post office or branch post office
regularly maintained by the United States government.

13. Administration. The Committee administers the Plan. The Employee’s rights under this Agreement are expressly subject to the terms and conditions
of'the Plan, a copy of which is attached hereto, including any guidelines the Committee adopts from time to time.
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14. Binding Effect. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and permitted assigns.

15. Sole Agreement. This Agreement is the entire agreement between the parties to it, and any and all prior oral and written representations are merged
into this Agreement. This Agreement may only be amended by written agreement between the Company and the Employee.

16. Governing Law. The interpretation, performance and enforcement of this agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware.
Executed as of the Grant Date.

FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.



Exhibit 10.4h

NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
PURSUANT TO THE FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION AND STOCK PLAN

This Agreement is made effective as of the XXXXXX day of XXXXXXXXXXX (the “Grant Date”) by FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Delaware
corporation, (the “Company”) and XXXXXXXXXXXXXX ( the “Director”).

In 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) adopted the FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan (the
“Plan”). The Plan, as it may be amended and continued, is incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement and will control the rights and
obligations of the Company and the Director under this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided, capitalized terms have the meaning provided in the Plan.
To the extent there is a conflict between the Plan and this Agreement, the Plan will prevail.

The Board determined that it would be to the competitive advantage and interest of the Company and its stockholders to grant a stock option to the
Director as an inducement to remain in the service of the Company or one ofits affiliates, and as an incentive for increased efforts during such service.

The Board, on behalf of the Company, grants to the Director a nonqualified stock option (the “Option”) to purchase an aggregate of XXXXXXXXXXX
shares of the common stock of the Company par value of $.01 per share (the “Common Stock”) at a price of $XXXXXXXXXX per share upon the following
terms and conditions:

1. Time of Exercise of Option. Subject to its termination as provided in Section 3, below, and to the satisfaction of the requirements of Section 2 below,
the Option is exercisable at any time or from time to time, in whole or in part, on or after XXXXXXXXXXX (the “Vesting Date”). Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Option will become immediately exercisable by the Director or by the person or persons to whom the Director’s rights under the Option pass
by will or by the applicable laws of descent and distribution, in the event of the Director’s death or Disability, or a Change in Control of the Company.

2. Conditions to Vesting. Subject to Section 3, below, it is a condition precedent to the right to exercise the Option that the Director remain a member
of'the Board continuously during the period from the Grant Date to the earliest of (a) the Vesting Date, (b) the date of the Director’s retirement from the Board
after age 72, (c) the date of the Director’s death or (d) the date of the Director’s Disability. A leave of absence or an interruption in service authorized or
approved by the Company shall not be deemed a termination for purposes of this Agreement. Any portion of the Option that is not vested will be forfeited
upon the Director’s termination of service as a member of the Board before the Vesting Date for a reason other than the Director’s death, Disability or
retirement after age 72.



3. Termination of Option. The Option and all rights thereunder, to the extent such rights will not have been exercised, will terminate and become null
and void on the earliest of the date that is (a) the fifth anniversary of the date on which the Director ceases to be a member of the Board by reason of death,
Disability or retirement from the Board after age 72, or (c) three months after the time at which Director ceases to be a member of the Board for any reason
other than death, Disability or retirement from the Board after age 72 (such date being referred to as the “Option Expiration Date”).

4. Right to Exercise. The Option may be exercised at any time on or after the date on which it first becomes exercisable under Sections 1 and 2, above,
to and including the Option Expiration Date by the Director or by the person or persons to whom the Director’s rights under the Option will pass by will or by
the applicable laws of descent and distribution. In no event may the Option be exercised to any extent by anyone before it becomes exercisable pursuant to
Sections 1 and 2, above, or after the Option Expiration Date.

5. Method of Exercise. The Director (or other person entitled to do so) may exercise the Option with respect to all or any part of the shares then subject
to such exercise (a) by giving the Company written notice of such exercise, specifying the Original Grant Date, the number of such shares as to which the
Option is being exercised, paying by cash or check, bank draft or postal or express money order payable to the order of the Company in lawful money of the
United States an amount equal to the sum of the option price of such shares and the amount of any taxes required to be withheld by the Company (the
“Option Payment”) or by shares of Common Stock that have been held by the Director for at least six months at the time of exercise, or, that were purchased
by the Director on the open market, having a Fair Market Value at the date of such notice equal to the Option Payment or by a combination of cash, check,
draft, money order and such shares, and (b) by giving satisfactory assurance in writing that such shares will not be publicly offered for sale, other than on a
national securities exchange. The Company may from time to time make available alternative methods of exercise upon notice to the Director. As soon as
practicable after receipt of such notice and payment, the Company will, without transfer or issue tax or other incidental expense to the Director or other
person exercising the Option, deliver to such Director or other person a certificate or certificates for Common Stock. If there is a failure to accept delivery of
all or part of the Common Stock upon tender or delivery thereof, the right to purchase such undelivered Common Stock may be terminated by the Company.

6. Adjustment. The Compensation Committee of the Board (“Committee”) may make equitable substitutions or adjustments in the Option and/or
Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Option as it determines to be appropriate in the event of any corporate event or transaction such as a stock split,
merger, consolidation, separation, including a spin-off or other distribution of stock or property of the Company, reorganization or any partial or complete
liquidation ofthe Company.



7. Rights Prior to Exercise. The Option will during the Director’s lifetime be exercisable only by the Director, and neither the Option nor any right
thereunder will be assignable or transferable by the Director by voluntary or involuntary act, operation of law, or otherwise, other than by testamentary
bequest or devise or the laws of descent and distribution. Any effort to assign or transfer a right, except as provided for herein, will be ineffective and may
result in the Company terminating the Option. Neither the Director nor any other person entitled to exercise the Option will have any of the rights ofa
stockholder with respect to the shares subject to the Option, except to the extent that Common Stock will have been issued upon the exercise of the Option.

8. No Limitation on Rights ofthe Company. The granting of the Option will not in any way affect the right or power of the Company to make
adjustments, reclassifications or changes in its capital or business structure or to merge, consolidate, reincorporate, dissolve, liquidate or sell or transfer all or
any part of its business or assets.

9. Government Regulation. The Company’s obligation to deliver Common Stock upon exercise of the Option will be subject to all applicable laws,
rules and regulations and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or national securities exchanges as may be required.

10. Withholding. The Company will comply with all applicable withholding tax laws, and will be entitled to take any action necessary to effectuate
such compliance.

11. Notice. Any notice to the Company provided for in this Agreement will be addressed to it in care of'its Secretary, FMC Technologies, Inc., 200 East
Randolph Drive, Chicago, Illinois 60601, and any notice to the Director (or other person entitled to exercise the Option) will be addressed to the Director’s
address now on file with the Company, or to such other address as either may designate to the other in writing. Any notice will be deemed to be duly given
when enclosed in a properly sealed envelope and addressed as stated above, and deposited, postage paid, in a post office or branch post office regularly
maintained by the United States government.

12. Administration. The Committee administers the Plan. The Director’s rights under this Agreement are expressly subject to the terms and conditions
of'the Plan, a copy of which is attached hereto, including any guidelines the Committee adopts from time to time.

13. Binding Effect. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and permitted assigns.

14. Sole Agreement. This Agreement is the entire agreement between the parties to it, and any and all prior oral and written representations are merged
into this Agreement. This Agreement may only be amended by written agreement between the Company and the Director.
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15. Governing Law. The interpretation, performance and enforcement of this agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware.
Executed as of the Grant Date.

FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.



Exhibit 10.4i

STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS AWARD AGREEMENT
PURSUANT TO THE FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC. INCENTIVE
COMPENSATION AND STOCK PLAN

This Agreement is made as of the day of ,200__ (the “Grant Date”) by FMC TEHNOLOGIES, INC., a Delaware corporation, (the
“Company”’) and XXXXXXXXXXXXX (the “Employee”);

In 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) adopted the FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan (the
“Plan”). The Plan, as it may be amended and continued, is incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement and will control the rights and
obligations of the Company and the Employee under this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided, capitalized terms have the meaning provided in the Plan.
To the extent there is a conflict between the Plan and this Agreement, the Plan will prevail.

The Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Committee”) determined that it would be to the competitive advantage and interest of the Company
and its stockholders to grant an award of stock appreciation rights to the Employee as an inducement to remain in the service of the Company or one of'its
affiliates (collectively, the “Employer”), and as an incentive for increased efforts during such service.

The Committee, on behalf of the Company, grants to the Employee a stock appreciation right (“SAR”) with respect to XXXXXXX shares of the
Company’s common stock par value of $0.01 per share (the “Common Stock”) at an SAR Price per share of $XXXXXXX, upon the following terms and
conditions:

1. Time of Exercise of SAR. Subject to its termination as provided in Section 3, below, and to the satisfaction of the requirements of Section 2 below,
the SAR is exercisable at any time or from time to time, in whole or in part, on or after XXXXXXXXXXXX (the “Vesting Date”). Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the SAR will become immediately exercisable by the Employer or by the person or persons to whom the Employee’s rights under the SAR pass by
will or by the applicable laws of descent and distribution, in the event of the Employee’s death or Disability, or a Change in Control of the Company.

2. Employment. Subject to Section 3, below, it is a condition precedent to the right to exercise the SAR that the Employee remain in the employ of the
Employer continuously during the period from the Grant Date to the earliest of (a) the Vesting Date, (b) the date of the Employee’s retirement under the
Company’s pension plan on or after age 62, (c) the date of the Employee’s death or (d) the date of the Employee’s Disability. Any portion of the SAR that is
not vested will



be forfeited upon the Employee’s termination of employment with the Employer before the Vesting Date for a reason other than the Employee’s death,
Disability or retirement under the Company’s pension plan on or after age 62.

3. Termination of SAR. The SAR and all rights thereunder, to the extent such rights will not have been exercised, will terminate and become null and
void on the earliest of (a) the date that is ten years from the Grant Date, (b) the date that is three months after the date the Employee ceases to be an employee
of'an Employer for any reason other than death, Disability, or retirement under the Company’s pension plan on or after age 62, (c) the date that is five years
from the date of the Employee’s retirement under the Company’s pension plan on or after age 62 or Disability, (d) the date that is one year from date of the
Employee’s death or (e) the date the Employee is terminated for Cause, (such date being referred to as the “SAR Expiration Date”).

4. Right to Exercise. The SAR may be exercised at any time on or after the date on which it first become exercisable under Sections 1 and 2, above, to
and including the SAR Expiration Date by the Employee or by the person or persons to whom the Employee’s rights hereunder will pass by will or by the
applicable laws of descent and distribution. In no event may the SAR be exercised to any extent by anyone before it becomes exercisable pursuant to
Sections 1 and 2, above, or after the SAR Expiration Date.

5. Method of Exercise. The Employee (or other person entitled to do so) may exercise the SAR with respect to all or any part of the shares then subject
to such exercise by giving the Company written notice of such exercise, specifying the Grant Date and the number of such shares as to which the SAR is
being exercised. As soon as practicable after receipt of such notice, the Company will, pay to the Employee or other person exercising the SAR an amount
equal to the excess of the Fair Market Value on the date of exercise of one share of Common Stock over the SAR Price per share multiplied by the number of
shares in respect of which the SAR is being exercised in the form of a check or other cash instrument. The Employee or other person entitled to exercise the
SAR is responsible for the payment of any taxes due upon exercising the SAR and will promptly pay the same on demand. The Employer will comply with all
applicable withholding tax laws, and will be entitled to take any action necessary to effectuate such compliance.

6. Adjustment. The Committee may make equitable substitutions or adjustments in the SAR as it determines to be appropriate in the event of any
corporate event or transaction such as a stock split, merger, consolidation, separation, including a spin-off or other distribution of stock or property of the
Company, reorganization or any partial or complete liquidation of the Company.

7. Rights Prior to Exercise. The SAR will during the Employee’s lifetime be exercisable only by the Employee, and neither the SAR nor any right
thereunder will be assignable or transferable by the Employee by voluntary or involuntary act, operation of law, or otherwise, other than by testamentary

bequest or devise or the laws of descent and distribution. Any effort to assign or
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transfer a right, except as provided for herein, will be ineffective and may result in the Company terminating the SAR. Neither the Employee nor any other
person entitled to exercise the SAR will have any of the rights of a stockholder under this Agreement.

8. No Limitation on Rights ofthe Company. The granting of the SAR will not in any way affect the right or power of the Company to make
adjustments, reclassifications or changes in its capital or business structure or to merge, consolidate, reincorporate, dissolve, liquidate or sell or transfer all or
any part of its business or assets.

9. Employment. Nothing in this Agreement or in the Plan will be construed as constituting a commitment, guarantee, agreement or understanding of
any kind or nature that the Employer will continue to employ the Employee, or as affecting in any way the right of the Employer to terminate the
employment of the Employee at any time.

10. Binding Effect. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and permitted assigns.

11. Governing Law. The interpretation, performance and enforcement of this agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware.

12. Withholding. The Employer will comply with all applicable withholding tax laws, and will be entitled to take any action necessary to effectuate
such compliance.

13. Notice. Any notice to the Company provided for in this Agreement will be addressed to it in care ofits Secretary, FMC Technologies, Inc., 200 East
Randolph Drive, Chicago, lllinois 60601, and any notice to the Employee (or other person entitled to exercise the SAR) will be addressed to the Employee’s
address now on file with the Company, or to such other address as either may designate to the other in writing. Any notice will be deemed to be duly given
when enclosed in a properly sealed envelope addressed as stated above and deposited, postage paid, in a post office or branch post office regularly
maintained by the United States or other applicable government.

14. Administration. The Committee administers the Plan. The Employee’s rights under this Agreement are expressly subject to the terms and conditions
of'the Plan, a copy of which is attached hereto, including any guidelines the Committee adopts from time to time.

15. Binding Effect. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and permitted assigns.

16. Sole Agreement. This Agreement is the entire Agreement between the parties to it, and any and all prior oral and written representations are merged
into this Agreement. This Agreement may only be amended by written agreement between the Company and the Employee.
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17. Governing Law. The interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware.

18. Privacy. Employee acknowledges and agrees to the Employer transferring certain personal data of such Employee to the Company for purposes of
implementing, performing or administering the Plan or any related benefit. Employee gives his consent to the Employer and the Company to process such
personal data.

Executed as of the Grant Date.

FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.



Exhibit 10.4j

PERFORMANCE UNITS AWARD AGREEMENT
PURSUANT TO THE FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION AND STOCK PLAN

This Agreement is made as of the day of ,200__ (the “Grant Date”), by FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Delaware corporation, (the
“Company”’) and XXXXXXXXXXXXX (hereinafter called the “Employee”).

In 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) adopted the FMC Technologies, Inc. Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan (the
“Plan”). The Plan, as it may be amended and continued, is incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement and will control the rights and
obligations of the Company and the Employee under this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided, capitalized terms have the meaning provided in the Plan.
To the extent there is a conflict between the Plan and this Agreement, the Plan will prevail.

The Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Committee”) determined that it would be to the competitive advantage and interest of the Company
and its stockholders to grant an award of performance units to the Employee as an inducement to remain in the service of the Company or one of its affiliates
(collectively, the “Employer”), and as an incentive for increased efforts during such service.

The Committee, on behalf of the Company, grants to the Employee an award of XXXXXXXX performance units with Dividend Equivalent Rights (the
“Performance Units”) upon the following terms and conditions:

1. Vesting. The Performance Units will vest and be immediately payable on XXXXXXXX (the “Vesting Date”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, all
Performance Units will vest and be immediately payable to Employee (or the Employee’s designated beneficiary or estate) in the event of the Employee’s
death, Disability or a Change in Control of the Company. A prorated portion of the Performance Units (to be prorated based on the time worked after the
Grant Date and prior to the Vesting Date) will be fully vested and deliverable to the Employee in the event of the Employee’s termination prior to the Vesting
Date without Cause. All Performance Units will be forfeited upon termination ofthe Employee’s employment with the Employer before the Vesting Date, for
areason other than death, Disability, or termination of employment by the Employer without Cause.

2. Payment. As soon as practicable following the Vesting Date, the Company will pay to the Employee an amount equal to the Fair Market Value of
one share of Common Stock of the Company multiplied by the total number of Performance Units granted hereunder in the form of a check or other cash
instrument. For purposes of calculating the amount payable under this



Agreement, Fair Market Value shall be based on the opening price of the Common Stock on the Vesting Date, or, if the Vesting Date is not a business day, the
next business day immediately following the Vesting Date.

3. Adjustment. The Committee may make equitable substitutions or adjustments in the Performance Units as it determines to be appropriate in the
event of any corporate event or transaction such as a stock split, merger, consolidation, separation, including a spin-off or other distribution of stock or
property of the Company, reorganization, or any partial or complete liquidation of the Company.

4. Nontransferability. No interest of the Employee or any beneficiary in or under this Agreement will be assignable or transferable by voluntary or
involuntary act, by operation of law, other than by testamentary bequest or devise, or the laws of descent or distribution. All rights of the Employee and his or
her beneficiary in and under this Agreement will be wholly inalienable and beyond the power of any person to anticipate or in any way create a lien or
encumbrance upon them. Payment of Performance Units will be made only to the Employee, or, if the Committee has been provided with evidence acceptable
to it that the Employee is legally incompetent, the Employee’s personal representative, or, if the Employee is deceased, to the beneficiaries or personal
representative that the Employee has designated, in the manner required by the Committee. The Committee may require documentation from and/or
signatures of an Employee’s personal representative or beneficiaries. Any effort to assign or transfer a right under this Agreement in contravention of this
Section 4 will be wholly ineffective, and will be grounds for termination by the Committee of all rights of the Employee and his or her personal
representative or beneficiary in and under this Agreement. Neither the Employee nor his or her personal representative or beneficiary will have any ofthe
rights of a stockholder of the Company pursuant to this Agreement.

5. No Limitation on Rights ofthe Company. The granting of Performance Units will not in any way affect the right or power of the Company to make
adjustments, reclassifications or changes in its capital or business structure or to merge, consolidate, reincorporate, dissolve, liquidate or sell or transfer all or
any part of its business or assets.

6. Employment. Nothing in this Agreement or in the Plan will be construed as constituting a commitment, guarantee, agreement or understanding of
any kind or nature that the Employer will continue to employ the Employee, or as affecting in any way the right of the Employer to terminate the

employment of the Employee at any time.

7. Withholding. The Employer will comply with all applicable withholding tax laws, and will be entitled to take any action necessary to effectuate
such compliance.
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8. Notice. Any notice to the Company provided for in this Agreement will be addressed to it in care of its Secretary, FMC Technologies, Inc., 200 East
Randolph Drive, Chicago, Illinois 60601, and any notice to the Employee (or other person entitled to receive the Performance Units will be addressed to the
Employee’s address now on file with the Company, or to such other address as either may designate to the other in writing. Any notice will be deemed to be
duly given when enclosed in a properly sealed envelope addressed as stated above and deposited, postage paid, in a post office or branch post office
regularly maintained by the United States or other applicable government.

9. Administration. The Committee administers the Plan. The Employee’s rights under this Agreement are expressly subject to the terms and conditions
of'the Plan, a copy of which is attached hereto, including any guidelines the Committee adopts from time to time.

10. Binding Effect. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and permitted assigns.

11. Sole Agreement. This Agreement is the entire agreement between the parties to it, and any and all prior oral and written representations are merged
into this Agreement. This Agreement may only be amended by written agreement between the Company and the Employee.

12. Governing Law. The interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware.

13. Privacy. Employee acknowledges and agrees to the Employer transferring certain personal data of such Employee to the Company for purposes of
implementing, performing or administering the Plan or any related benefit. Employee expressly gives his consent to the Employer and the Company to
process such personal data.

Executed as of the Grant Date.

FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
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Exhibit 15

Letter re: Unaudited Interim Financial Information

FMC Technologies, Inc.
Chicago, lllinois

Re: Registration Statements on Form S-8 (No. 333-62996,333-76210,333-76214 and 333-76216).

With respect to the subject registration statements, we acknowledge our awareness of the incorporation by reference therein of our report dated May 9, 2005,
related to our review of interim financial information.

Pursuant to Rule 436(c) under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Act”), such report is not considered part of a registration statement prepared or certified by an
independent registered public accounting firm, or a report prepared or certified by an accountant within the meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Act.

Very truly yours,
/s/ KPMG LLP

Chicago, Illinois
May 10,2005



Exhibit31.1

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CERTIFICATION

I, Joseph H. Netherland, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of FMC Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”), certify that:

1.
2.

I'have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of FMC Technologies, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of'the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)  disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)  any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: May 9, 2005

/s/ Joseph H. Netherland

Joseph H. Netherland
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer)



Exhibit31.2

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION

I, William H. Schumann, III, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of FMC Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”™), certify that:

1.
2.

I'have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of FMC Technologies, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of'the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)  disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)  any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: May 9, 2005

/s/ William H. Schumann, IIT

William H. Schumann, III
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

Certification
of
Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002

I, Joseph H. Netherland, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of FMC Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”), do hereby certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 02002, that, to my knowledge:

(a) the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,2005, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
Date: May 9, 2005

/s/ Joseph H. Netherland

Joseph H. Netherland
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature
that appears in typed form with the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to FMC Technologies, Inc., and
will be retained by FMC Technologies, Inc., and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

Certification
of
Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002

I, William H. Schumann, III, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of FMC Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”), do hereby certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 02002, that, to my knowledge:

(a) the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,2005, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
Date: May 9, 2005

/s/ William H. Schumann, IIT

William H. Schumann, III
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature
that appears in typed form with the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to FMC Technologies, Inc., and
will be retained by FMC Technologies, Inc., and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

32



	10-Q (FMC TECHNOLOGIES INC) (May 10, 2005)
	10-Q - FORM 10-Q
	PART I FINANCIAL INFORMATION
	ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
	ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
	ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

	PART II OTHER INFORMATION
	ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
	ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
	ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

	SIGNATURE
	EXHIBIT INDEX

	EX-10.4 (D) (FORM OF GRANT AGREEMENT FOR LONG TERM INCENTIVE RESTRICTED STOCK GRANT)
	EX-10.4 (E) (FORM OF GRANT AGREEMENT FOR LONG TERM INCENTIVE RESTRICTED STOCK GRANT(NON-EMPLO)
	EX-10.4 (F) (FORM OF GRANT AGREEMENT FOR KEY MANAGER RESTRICTED STOCK GRANT)
	EX-10.4 (G) (FORM OF GRANT AGREEMENT FOR NON-QUALIFIED STOCK OPTION GRANT(EMPLOYEE))
	EX-10.4 (H) (FORM OF GRANT AGREEMENT FOR NON-QUALIFIED STOCK OPTION GRANT(NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECT)
	EX-10.4 (I) (FORM OF GRANT AGREEMENT FOR STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS GRANT)
	EX-10.4 (J) (FORM OF GRANT AGREEMENT FOR PERFORMANCE UNITS GRANT)
	EX-15 (LETTER)
	EX-31.1 (CERTIFICATION OF CEO)
	EX-31.2 (CERTIFICATION OF CFO)
	EX-32.1 (CERTIFICATION OF CEO SECTION 906)
	EX-32.2 (CERTIFICATION OF CFO SECTION 906)


